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ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUl (c.e. No. 08-55)

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
... (gavel). . .
The Budget ... the Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for April the 8th here in Paia Community Center is now
called to order. Good evening, everyone. I'm glad to see all of you here this
evening, early evening, to provide testimony to the Fiscal Year 2009 Budget as
prepared by Mayor Charmaine Tavares. Before we go into the proceedings, at
this time, I would like to have your Councilmember from the
Paia-Haiku-Makawao area, Mike Molina, to introduce the rest of the Budget and
Finance Committee Members that are here this evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Aloha everyone, and thank you very much for
coming out tonight to share your thoughts with us, with regards to the Fiscal Year
2009 Budget. I'd like to first introduce to you our Council Chairman, Mr. Riki
Hokama, from the island of Lanai. Sitting next to him or in my near left here is
from the island of Molokai, Vice-Chairman Danny Mateo. And over to my far
left the lovely gal who's no stranger to all representing Up country Maui, Gladys
Baisa. And right here to my near right from heavenly Hana, Councilmember Bill
Medeiros. And last but not least our meeting facilitator tonight, our esteemed
Chairman Joe "Show Me the Money" Pontanilla from Kahului.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mike. Show me the money, yeah .... (laughter) ..
. Let me give you a few ground rules at this time. If you don't know, the
bathrooms are located towards the back of this ... back of the Committee ... of this
community center. Also, if you could turn off your cell phones or put it on the
silent mode before I call up the first testifier so that the testifiers that are testifying
are not interrupted by your cell phones. If you're signed up for public testimony,
you have three minutes to provide testimony to this Committee with one minute
to conclude. Upon three minutes, the Staff will let you know that your three
minutes have gone by and if you could conclude in one minute, the Committee
would appreciate it.
We forgot to introduce the Staff members that are here supporting this Committee
this evening. We do have Pauline Martins. Pauline is the Secretary. We do have
Scott Jensen who is a Legislative Analys, and from my office, my Executive
Assistant, Kelly McGinnis.
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The first eight testifiers are from the Boys and Girls Club. As I call you up, if you
could line up and provide testimony and don't leave the mic when you've
concluded your testimony. The Committee Members may have questions for you
so if you can pause a moment before you turn around and go back and sit down.
So we do have Brandon Nagata, Kelly Pearson, Colin Hanlon, Lynn Curtis, Kali
Karalius, Gracy Hurd-Gomez, Reilly Kummer, LeEtta Rhoades, Alina Rhoades,
and Lisa Gilbert. When you provide your public testimony, if you could say your
name and the organization that you represent, we'd appreciate that. Thank you .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. KUMMER: Hi. I'm Reilly Kummer. I'm from the Boys and Girls Club. I like the
Boys and Girls Club because I don't have to do chores like at home and I still
help out around the club. I'm 11 years old and I have been a member for three
years. I like ping pong and dodge ball. And if it weren't for the Boys and Girls
Club, I'd be bugging my parents and not having fun.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for that testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you very much. Next testifier.
MS. KARALIUS: My name is Kali Karalius and I'm 10 years old. I go to the Haiku
Boys and Girls Club and I'm in the fifth grade. I've been going since only
August 2007. I like going to the club because all my friends are there and it's like
having all your friends over your house but cooler. I like the food there. I like it
when we do drama with Tiana. I would be bored at home watching TV if it
weren't for the Boys and Girls Club. Please support our Boys and Girls Club.
Peace.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you. Next testifier.
MS. HURD-GOMEZ: Hi. My name is Gracy Hurd and I'm ten years old. I've been a
member for the ... for the Boys and Girls Club for three years. I like games at the
Boys and Girls Club like pool and dodge ball. Because of the club I got to go to
Oahu and have tons of fun at the water park and ice skate rink. If there was a
club, I'd just ... if there was no club, I'd just have to go home and be bored and
watch TV all day, which isn't nearly as fun as the Boys and Girls Club. Please
support the Boys and Girls Club. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you very much. Next testifier.
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MS. L. RHOADES: Hi. My name is Lily [sic] Rhoades. I have gone to Haiku Boys and
Girls Club for three years and it's like my second home. I love going because
there's always something fun to do and people I love to play with. Even in the
saddest moments there, they are there to cheer us up, and if there's a problem,
they will take care of it right away. Well, sometimes. But I have to say we
couldn't do it without Brandon Nagata. He's funny and a great role model and
that's ... and that we couldn't have a good club without him and that's why I go as
often as I can. Please give him a good hand.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for that testifier? If not, thank
you very much. Next testifier.
MS. A. RHOADES: Hi. My name is Alina Rhoades. I'm Lily's [sic] mom. She loves
the Boys and Girls Club. She'd rather be there rather than at home. I feel it's
good for her because it's a safe place she can go after school. I can leave her
there and go to work and not have to worry about her all day. She plays on the
computer. She's in a couple of clubs. I like the Girl's Club. They teach 'em
basic sewing skills, baking skills, just living skills that they'll need when they're
older.
She's also in the Smart Moves which teaches them about drugs,
adolescence and things that they'll be facing as they grow up. I can't think of a
better place to leave her and it's a whole lot better than staying home and
watching TV. Thank you very much for your consideration.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier this evening?
Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. Next testifier, please.
MS. CURTIS: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you very much for this
opportunity. My name is Lynn Curtis and I'm speaking to you tonight as a
member of the Board of Directors for the Boys and Girls Club. I'd just like to
voice my gratitude to you for your support in the past and urge you to continue to
support the club during these lean times and I hope you'll feel it in your heart to
fund them in a way that is befitting this organization and their needs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for testifying. Next testifier, please.
MS. GILBERT: Thank you. My name is Lisa Gilbert and my son Levy has been
attending the Boys and Girls Club for I guess about two years now. And he bugs
me constantly if he can go there whether I'm working or not and it's just a safe
place and he does his homework there, he gets to play games, he gets to be around
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kids his age. It's just super helpful and I just can't say enough good things about
it and just want to say thank you so much for supporting them. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for testifying.
MS. GILBERT: Sure.
MR. NAGATA: Aloha, everybody. My name is Brandon Nagata and I'm the Unit
Director at the Boys and Girls Club of Maui, Haiku. I am here for two reasons.
The first is to thank you all for your support and making it possible for us to be a
successful youth service organization and the second is to ask you to help us reach
our full potential by adding additional funds into the youth center pot. With the
additional funds we will be able to provide more quality programs to our youth
and retain quality staff. Depending on the day and school schedule, our Haiku
club serves ... services anywhere from 30 to 100 youth a day and during the year
we will register close to 300 youth, providing them with a safe and positive
environment.
I have found in my seven years with working with the Boys and Girls Club that
when our youth are involved in a program like ours, they will have fun and most
importantly be safe. Without a program like ours they have a 50 percent chance
of getting in trouble or getting hurt. Fifty percent because they will either choose
to do the right thing or choose not to. Like their friends, we as staff have the
opportunity to influence our youth and to engage them in a positive program daily
and to take what we teach them back into their homes, schools, and community.
All this is done with quality staff and programming. Without the resources we
provide through your funding, our 30 to 100 kids that attend daily will either be
roaming the streets or at home unsupervised having to make the choice of doing
the right thing or choosing not to. With that in mind, again, thank you for your
support and urge you to please find the funds to raise the youth center pot.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you.
MS. PEARSON: Good evening, County Council. My name is Kelly Pearson and I'm the
Director of Operations for the Boys and Girls Club on Maui. Over the past four
weeks you've heard from a bunch of our kids, the parents of the kids who come to
our clubs, board members, and management staff about why the Boys and Girls
Club of Maui is a critical service for our community. Tonight I just want to talk
about one of the reasons why we're asking for an increase. And an increase really
doesn't mean an increase because as ... each year we continue to expand our reach
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to our Maui, Maui kids and their families and our costs also increase. Every
dollar you support us with is greatly appreciated and put to good use. Not only do
we utilize these local dollars, we leverage County monies to diversify our funding
base bringing dollars into the community from outside sources such as the State,
the Feds, and private foundations.
I've had the privilege of working with many dedicated and passionate staff who
we call our Youth Development Professionals. We have interviewed them, hired
them, and trained them--many, many staff over the past 11 years--only to lose
some of them because they can make more money somewhere else. We want to
be able to provide a competitive wage for our workers in order to retain them,
create stability within our organization and in the world of the youth that we
serve. When staff leave, youth development loses great and dedicated people, and
more importantly and more sadly, our kids lose a friend, just like how they were
talking about Brandon tonight. Whether the staff member has taught them how to
throw/catch a football, whether a staff person has attended their graduation
ceremony, or whether the club was the only time they could eat some birthday
cake, whether the staff at the club was the only one who showed them they really
cared about their school, or whether the staff person was the only adult who
would listen to them, bottom line is when we lose staff, we take that away from
our kids. When you work on the budget for the upcoming year, I ask that you
consider helping us to provide that positive, solid, and stable environment for our
Maui kids. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Colin.
MR. HANLON: I was just here for questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. You guys got any questions for Colin? Seeing none.
Thank you, Colin. The next testifier is Norita DeLima.
MS. DELIMA:
Thank you. (NOTE: Speaking to Mr. Jensen, who adjusted the
microphone stand) Good evening. My name is Norita DeLima and I'm Chair
with the Commission on Persons with Disabilities and I would like to thank the
Mayor and all of you for your time. I'm here today to ask for support for the
MEO programs that they have in place, and as you know, without the different
programs, the people will suffer. I'm also here to ask for support for the MEO
Transport Center and ask for the daytime funding for dialysis. The evening
patients right now and their families are facing to transport themselves home on
the last shift 'cause right now the timeframe is six in the morning to 9:00 p.m. at
night and that would be for the Wailuku Branch and the Kaha ... Kahana Branch in
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Lahaina. And without treatment they can die and they cannot miss a treatment.
I'm glad that we have the Maui Bus in service because it helps me as a back up
instead of me wheeeling myself on the side of the streets. Although I am a little
disappointed with the public transportation at times because there is times when I
go to ride the bus, they tell me, oh, why you riding this bus, and I tell them, well,
'cause I have rights on the bus. And then I'm also faced at times that they not
tying me down right so that's when I turn 'em in. So ... and I, I... for the last two
months at least I've busted about six drivers and on top of that some of them are
speeding. So I just wanted you folks to know that. And I also is not in favor of
increasing the Wailuku and the Kahului fares because that's where all the heavy
traffic and the preschool kids, the teenagers, the young adults, elderly, and the
mobility impaired and the homeless do their business, and a lot of them are on
fixed incomes. Do you have any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, N orita, for your testimony. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Norita, thank you for being here and thank you for
serving as Chair of the Commission on Persons with Disabilities. That's a very
important Commission. You know, the people that that Commission takes care of
they probably depend on you to speak for them. You mentioned a couple of
problems ... (coughs) . .. I'm sorry, but the smog is getting to me ... the vog or
whatever it is, you mentioned problems with not being tied down properly and
bus drivers speeding, is this ... who's bus system is this?
MS. DELIMA: This is the Maui Bus. The public transit, not the para transit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Department?

And you've reported this to County Transportation

MS. DELIMA: I have reported it to Robert's themselves so they've been working with
the drivers as I call 'em in.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, it's really important safe way ... I mean, you know,
being people, being safe, and traveling safely is very important. So thank you for,
you know, doing what any concerned citizen would do and that is reporting things
that should be fixed. So thank you very much and thank you for coming tonight.
MS. DELIMA: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. DELIMA: Thank you for having me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier, Lissa Fox.
MS. FOX: Good evening. My name is Lissa Fox. I'm Public and Relations ... Public
Relations and Education Specialist with the Maui Invasive Species Committee.
I've worked there for approximately four years now. Initially, I started off
working in Hana with the miconia group. On ... then about two years or about just
over a year ago, I took on being the outreach liaison for an educational
curriculum. It's the Hoike 0 Haleakala curriculum that the Maui Invasive Species
Committee houses and it's a Maui-based science curriculum that was developed
by the National Park Service and resource managers and local teachers here to
foster a sense of stewardship amongst our youth. It's been ... it was quite an
experience. I worked quite a bit with local teachers, giving them the tools and the
background to help teach about the environmental resources that we have on
Maui. On ... and then just recently I became the Public Relations and Education
Specialist.
I understand that Councilwoman Baisa wondered what pampas grass looked like
so I brought some pictures. This is pampas grass in California. It's a picture of
Tiger Woods and the caption is "Never Be Intimidated", which is a good motto
for, well, the work that Maui Invasive Species Committee does. On ... we're faced
with a lot of challenging conditions to try and work in such as inclement weather,
access permISSIon. It's quite a bit of work. This picture on the left is an
infestation of pampas grass in our native forests. It's a wind dispersed plant so
we're always faced with finding new populations in very difficult to access
places. And this person is definitely not intimidated - it can be a very rewarding
job. And this is just some pictures of some of the conditions that we do end up
working in. It's, it's on all fronts. We end up doing a lot of camping, working in,
well, mud and rain, and every condition possible, accessing areas only by
helicopter. But it is an ornamental plant. And yeah, just thank you guys for your
support very much and just ask for your continued support in the future. You
have any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Baisa.

Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Member

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'd like to thank you very much for bringing the pictures.
You know, one picture is worth a thousand words and I think we've all seen that
fuzzy stuff and it look like something to make a nice decoration, not realizing that
it is a pest. So thank you very, very much.
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MR. TAVARES: (NOTE: Speaking from the audience.) Could the Chairman ask to let
us see for just a half a second ... couple of seconds?
CHAlR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. TAVARES: (NOTE: Speakingfrom the audience.) And the other one, please. Way
up high so that. ..
MS. FOX: Alright. One at a time. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's not something you want to put -MR. TAVARES: (NOTE: Speakingfrom the audience.) Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --in your living room because it spreads. How does it
spread?
MS. FOX: It's wind dispersed seeds so the big feathery plumes that are so pretty
traveL .. they'll travel up to 20 miles on the wind.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, my goodness.
MS. FOX: So one plant could easily be spreading seeds all over Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAlR PONT ANILLA:
Medeiros.

Thank you. Lissa, you have one more question. Member

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, and thank you
Ms. Fox for testifying and for the pictures. Do we know how this invasive
species arrived on our island?
MS. FOX: It was brought in as an ornamental plant. These pictures here ... it was planted
in people's yards because it was pretty. The impacts of what it could do in our
native forest weren't realized and by the time they were there was already a fairly
established population.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And does your organization know how long it's
been here?
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MS. FOX: Oh, I believe it's been ... it's hard to tell. It's been here for quite a while.
They realized it was a problem in the late 80's and that's when work began on it
when they started seeing plants in the crater already.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo for your testimony.
MS. FOX: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions?
Thank you for your testimony. Mike Morris.

Seeing none.

MR. MORRIS: Hi, Chair. You also have Jason Justus there?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. MORRIS: I'm gonna let ... I'm gonna let Jason go first.
MR. mSTUS: I'm better looking. First of all, my name is Jason Justus. I'm the Senior
Program Director at the YMCA. I've been there for about eight and a half years.
I am 6'8" just so everyone knows so. Yeah, if you're a Y member, you grow. .. ,
(laughter) . .. so just to put that out there. First of all, I, I wear many hats at the Y
and I was very fortunate to work in Hana as a PE. teacher, also Haiku as a PE.
teacher through a grant that the YMCA received so we're very fortunate. And I
do ... I do a lot of other things too. I don't really work well with people this tall,
usually this tall so I do a lot of stuff with the youth. So that, that I'm pretty
blessed by that. I do a lot of things with kids from day camps to after school
programs to karate, martial arts, sewing camps, all that stuff. I'm not a good
sewer, but I get someone else to do it. Do birthday parties, martial arts, all that
stuff.
Now, the big thing with the YMCA is that we're limited in space. That's one of
our biggest issues and we do a lot of our day camp out in tents. And obviously
with the wind and the weather, that, that actually gets sometimes kind of stressful,
especially when we have to come inside to a racquetball court and if you're a
YMCA member, you know the YMCA racquetball people are kind of cranky
when we go inside the racquetball court with about 190 kids per week.
So, so that's pretty much it. You know, we're looking at trying to expand our
YMCA and trying to getting more of a place where the kids can come and
welcome and also a place where we can actually have our teen and our youth
come in after school. Not just so much them, but also our seniors will have a
place to go and play dominoes or cards after they have their fitness workout or a
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nice water aerobics. So all I ask is please support the YMCA and thanks for your
time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you for your testimony. Mike.
MR. MORRIS: Thank you, Council Members and Mr. Money. . . . (laughter) . .. I'm
Mike Morris with the Maui Family YMCA. We are very blessed to have people
like Jason. He is one of a hundred employees that we have with the YMCA. And
we are spread all over the island. Some great work that Jason's done over the last
three years, especially with the physical education programs in the elementary
schools has really gone leaps and bounds for our organization. In front of you
hopefully you have a sheet that I provided, says who do we serve and I know I
spouted off some stats earlier when we were meeting a couple of weeks ago and I
said 45 percent of our constituents make less than $40,000 a year. I was wrong.
It's 55 percent of our constituents make less than $40,000 a year. So it's a great
diverse group of folks that we're serving in Maui County. We hope you'll look
favorable on this request that we're asking for. If you think about the leverage of
the money that you'd be giving to the Y and what we're building for it, you're
getting 40,000 square feet serving over 13,000 people annually. Where else can
you invest money in something like that and get the return on that investment than
you can with the YMCA? So I'll leave it there. You've heard ... you've heard me
for two weeks and see if there's any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Morris at this
time? Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. David DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Good evening. I'm wearing a different hat today. I'm Dave DeLeon.
I'm a member of the Maui Bicycle Alliance. It's ... I want to thank you for this
opportunity to testify in support of bikeways for our residents. I'd like to reiterate
why I think the development of a ... this is a little high, hold on ... (adjusts mic) . ..
why the development of a bikeway through agricultural fields near Baldwin
Avenue for tours ... downhill tours is a bad idea. Such a facility will be
extraordinarily expensive to operate safety, will lead to ... likely lead to expensive
litigation, and will not serve our local community. Instead of investing $10
million on a bikeway for downhill tours, please put the County's limited bikeway
funds into greenways our residents need. Everyone knows that we have a
problem in this country with obesity and inactivity. Everybody knows that the
cost of gasoline is $4 a gallon and climbing. Everybody knows that we're
choking our planet with fumes from carbon. Bikeways are not the answer to all
these, these problems, but that would be a great start and it's something the
County can do to help cut back on some of those tremendous issues.
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The good news is that Public Works ... the County Department of Public Works is
about to start building a bike path from Paia to Baldwin Park this summer. I want
to thank the Council for your support for that project and I want to ask that
you ... for your continued support for the completion of the North Shore greenway
from Paia to Kahului. The idea of the North Shore greenway is to allow a kid in
Paia to get on his back and ride safely on an independent path into Kahului, say to
watch a movie, and the kids in Kahului will be able to get on their bikes or walk
or whatever they care to do and come out to the beaches in Paia without using a
car. The goal is a healthier Maui County.
Meanwhile, the long planned Kihei greenway project IS turning into a lost
promise. It's getting to be forgotten. The project now goes back four
Administrations and that's mainly because it's tied to a controversial road project
and the road project is not getting federal funding so the bikeway doesn't get
federal funding. You could unstick [sic] this problem by, by separating the bike
path from the road project and perhaps build little segments of the thing annually.
If we'd been doing that, it would have been built ten years ago already. But
we've been waiting on the federal funds for the road project and they don't
necessarily have to be tied together. Bike paths can be built separately and
independently of the road project.
Once again we're talking about giving our residents a safe, healthy alternative to
moving around in their communities without burning expensive fuel that chokes
our environment. And then on one other automative ... automotive note, I'd like to
point out that -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. DELEON: --we still need to have more parking
commercial district.

III

Paia, especially

III

the

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Question? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. Good evening, David. Thank you
for your testimony.
MR. DELEON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: With regards to the Baldwin bikeway ... Baldwin
Avenue bikeway, who told you it was only being built for downhill tours?
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MR. DELEON: That's essentially what it's going to end up being.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Because ...
MR. DELEON: 1 can't ... 1 can't imagine too many Maui residents going up and down
that hill.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, we've heard differently from people from the
Outdoor Circle. Part of the idea is also a greenway as well as, you know, a bike
path for, you know, folks like yourselves from the Maui Bicycle Alliance. So to
my knowledge 1 don't recall it ever being strictly only for the downhill tours.
MR. DELEON: Oh, no, it's not. It's not limited but try go uphill against the stream of
bicycles coming down in mass tours.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. DELEON: That would be very dangerous.
COUNCILMEMBERMOLINA: Well, it could be if the bike hill ... downhill tours ...
MR. DELEON: Well, let me ... 1 don't want to speak ill of, you know, the group you just
mentioned but 1 did have a conversation with them a couple years ago and asked
them how many of them rode bicycles and nobody raised their hands. 1 don't see
any of those guys riding up that hill.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Maybe they're walkers. But anyway, 1 just wanted to
make sure the public knows it's not only ... this proposal is not only built to cater
to the downhill tours, but for people who walk as well as, you know, other
bicyclists.
MR. DELEON: Council Member, if we weren't talking about bicycles coming on the
downhill tours, we wouldn't be talking about this bike path. There's no logical
place to build this ... the reason to build this bike path except for those downhill
runs. That's the only reason it's being built.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, it's ... 1 don't know, 1 have to disagree with you
on that. But anyway, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the testifier at
this time? Seeing none.
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MR. DELEON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
6:30 p.m.). ..

Thank you.

Allen Duarte.

. . . (end of tape, start IE at

MR. DUARTE: Thank you, Council Persons, for your time here. My name is Allen
Duarte. I'm a Captain out here at the Paia Fire Station. I've been assigned here
for the last two years. I've been a Member of the Department for 17 years, and
I'm speaking on behalf of our Department's request to replace our mini truck out
here in Paia, as well as our engine pumper out here at the Paia Fire Station. I was
hoping to have our mini truck out here tonight. I felt just simply by viewing our
vehicle it would be evident as to the need of that vehicle being replaced. The
truck is over 30 years old and it looks every bit that. The reason it's not here
tonight is because it's sitting in the Kahului Station right now in our mechanic
shop awaiting repairs and parts where it's been sitting for the past four months.
I think it would be safe to say that in my two years of service here, that truck has
been out of service almost as much as it has been in service. And it probably
would be maybe a bit of an exaggeration but not much of one to say that just
about every time we're using that vehicle, we suffer some type of mechanical
breakdown or malfunction. As a captain in charge of the safety of my crew, that
is a thought that weighs heavily on me. I've heard countless number of stories of
entire crews perishing because of a mechanical breakdown and the crews being
overrun by fire. In short, the vehicle is not reliable and in our profession, an
unreliable ... an unreliable vehicle is an unsafe vehicle. So I strongly urge you to
consider the replacement of that vehicle.
And incidentally, it is imperative in this district, if you live in this district or
spending time in this district, that we do have a mini vehicle that is accessible to
areas which our engine pumper is not. There's tremendous amount of areas, some
of which even might surprise you, right in these neighborhood areas there's
residential roads which our engine does not fit - right off Baldwin Ave., right off
Haiku Road, just up the road here, there's several residential streets which we
cannot access with our engine pumper. So in addition to rescues at Twin Falls or
brushfires down in Peahi, there's a lot of utilization for that mini pumper.
As far as our engine pumper, that vehicle is 13 years old going on 14. NFPA
standard recommends a replacement of an engine pumper every ten years. When
you factor in the environment we live in and the terrain that our vehicle is
expected to cover, I think it would be safe to say that our vehicle has by far
exceeded its years of service. That vehicle also suffers a number of breakdowns.
We're often running into Kahului for repairs, often replacing that vehicle
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with ... or coming back out here with a spare vehicle. And what concerns me
about that is our spare vehicles are often older vehicles and even less reliable. So
again, I feel the safety of my crew as well as the service that we're offering our
community out here is compromised.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. DUARTE: Okay. Thank you. So anyway I just strongly urge you consider those
replacements. I'm here tonight and my crew is available here if you have any
further questions, as well as Chief Cordeiro. And we're also available to any of
you Council Persons anytime at Paia Station if you feel free to drop on by. Thank
you again for your time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Captain Duarte. Just for your information
tomorrow morning we'll be reviewing the Department's budget for the year and
we're gonna be looking at your equipment request also. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Captain Duarte, thank you
for your testimony. Seems like this is the next generation because your dad was
my captain -MR. DUARTE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --when I was in the Fire Department and I was
stationed at Paia so I know what Paia is like and the facilities and the equipment.
But on the mini pumper, do you ... do you know if you folks submitted that for
replacement prior to this budget being that it's 30 years old?
MR. DUARTE: I'm not exactly sure what went into previous budgets but I, I do believe
it had been requested previously to be replaced. Chief Cordeiro could probably
confirm that I think. .. , {inaudible} . .. Sorry, Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'm going to ask the Chair if he'll allow, you know,
someone else to come up as a resource.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Chief, if you could provide us ... Member Medeiros with
some information?
MR. CORDEIRO: Good evening, Chair. Good evening, everyone. The vehicle is
actually a replacement from Hana and we put it where we can when we have
vehicles. It's really a second line and we'd like to get a first line replacement and
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we'll have that addressed when we discuss it tomorrow. But yes, it is an old
vehicle but it still has some use yet and we use it as best as we can.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that information. And yeah, you
know, I operated that vehicle when it was in Hana, too, so it's an old one. But
thank you for that information, and yeah, we look forward to going over your
budget in tomorrow's meeting. Thank you, Captain Duarte.
MR. DUARTE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the Fire and
Safety Department? Seeing none. Thank you very much. The next testifier is
Lila Kronoski.
MS. KRONOSKI: Aloha. My name is Lila Kronoski. I'm the Reservations Manager for
Condominium Rentals Hawaii. We are a small rentaL .. vacation rental company
in Kihei. We've been there since 1982. I've been with the company for 22 years.
I am here first to thank you for your support of the Maui Visitor Bureau and I
want to request for your continued support for level funding for this coming fiscal
year. The Maui Visitor Bureau has been excellent in helping us promote Maui.
It's crucial to get our name out there, especially now with ATA and Aloha Airlines
hitting us where it hurts. And you know, there's so many people that are affected
by it. You've seen it all. It's in the news. I don't have to go over that.
But we want to make sure that the funding is available to help us because not only
do these people that take vacations stay in our condos but we took an average stay
to figure out how many people stayed with us. They stayed about eight days.
During those eights days they frequented restaurants here on Maui - about 16 to
20 restaurants were able to benefit from these vacationers. They spent money at
Foodland, Costco, Wal-Mart, Safeway. So it's not just the hotel industry that
benefits, it's everyone. Activities that they were able to, to utilize. They were
able to go on helicopter tours, luaus. You know, everyone benefited from it and
so we're asking for your continued help ... support here. We put in a lot of our
own monies even though we are a small company to promote ourselves, promote
Maui, and to promote our rooms. We're asking for your continued help. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member
Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, and Lila, thank you for
being here this evening. I think we heard from your boss, right? Mr. Allan
Raikes?
MS. KRONOSKI: Mr. Raikes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And he said that your company contributes
quite a bit to your own advertisement -MS. KRONOSKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --besides Maui Visitors Bureau, which is good to
hear, you know, as the Council hears that because a lot of times the benefits of
Maui Visitors Bureau do not get supplemented by the tourism industry. So it's
good to hear that your company does contribute to your own public relations and
your advertising. But thank you for your testimony this evening.
MS. KRONOSKI: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions? Seeing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Members, the next testifiers are representing the Keiki
Kokua organization - Karl Bossert, Charlene Drose, Adele Movar, John Baker,
and AIda St. James.
MR. BOSSERT: Good evening and thank you for coming out to Paia. My name is Karl
Bossert and I actually want to talk about a couple of topics. I was unable to make
it out to Lahaina and I wanted to briefly touch on, on some issues of public
transportation. I'm the team leader for Lahaina Bypass Now focusing on public
transportation and I, I wanted to talk briefly about the bus system, and in
particular, the commuter bus system, which has actually enjoyed a great success
this last year, almost tripling in ridership. So Don Medeiros who we worked very
closely with has done a great job. The next logical step in the expansion to that
system is the Villager. .. the Lahaina Villager bus that's been asked for. The
request is about $330,000 and if you look at a typical commuter bus ridership, it
runs nationwide about 10 percent. If you look in Lahaina, the population's about
91,000 people. If you were to have 5 percent of the people riding that bus, that
would pay for, for that budget request and so for that reason, this looks like a
very ... a very good investment for the Council to make.
The other thing I wanted to talk about is Keiki Kokua where I'm the Board
President. I'm also a adoptive and foster parent and adoptive parent. This
organization has a goal of decreasing difficulty in placing kids into foster homes

- 18 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 8, 2008
Paia Community Center

and also reducing the number of multiple homes they have to transition through.
My own daughter went through several homes before she came to us and we
ultimately adopted her and her biological brother. Just a quick statistic.
Currently, when you look at kids who are maturing out of the system and turning
18, only about 50 percent of those kids are actually getting a high school diploma.
Many of them have problems in their later life, get into trouble, have legal issues.
So it's really I think a great investment for the Council to look at to, to try and
stem that tide and invest early in those kids and find a way to improve their lives.
Keiki Kokua offers a lot of services including a help line. And I can tell you
when I was a foster parent, it was very stressful. A lot of things that I didn't
understand about this system and there wasn't a mechanism. There wasn't a
phone I could lift up and, and dial and say, what's going on with this, and I spent a
lot of time, as did my wife, trying to research and really understand a very
complicated system. So that's one of the things that Keiki Kokua does. They
have other services. They have luggage drives. They have web pages. We're just
getting off the ground and we would look for support from the Council. And
again, this I think is, is not really a cost item but a great investment in these kids
in the long term. So thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony.
MR. BOSSERT: Thank you.
MS. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council Members. I'm sorry. The folks that we
thought were coming tonight weren't able to make it so it's just Karl and me
tonight. As you know, I'm AIda St. James. I'm the Executive Director of Keiki
Kokua and I'm requesting a $35,000 line item for inclusion in the Mayor's
Budget. As you know, this is our first request for County funding. At these
hearings, you have met our parents, supporters, adopted kids, and a 19 year old
who is still in foster care because she is attending college. You have heard their
stories. You have also learned about the lifelong effects of toxic stress on
children. We hope that the information shared at these hearings has brought
public awareness to the all but forgotten plight of these children, stuck in a State
system that cannot adequately fulfill their needs. Keiki Kokua is a small program
with a huge impact and enormous potential.
Now you probably got the impression
and me doing the job, but that's really
parents we have trained and so we've
in reality, Keiki Kokua is not us at all.
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us. It's about the kids and it's about the families. It's about our great Board of
Directors and our wonderful, dedicated volunteers.
In time as our funding allows, we will train qualified staff to assist us. We
envision an office that foster parents can come to for support and transitioning
foster youth can come to for practical assistance. We envision a foster parent
exchange where the many donations we receive, such as baby clothes, shoes,
cribs, toys, can be stored and distributed, and the luggage we collect made
available year round. We envision a space where foster parents can come for
trainings, family counseling, mentoring programs, and respite care all under one
roof. Right now I am asking you to please make the commitment to help fulfill
this dream for the foster children and the parents of Maui County. Thank you for
any amount of funding you can provide.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you
very much for your testimony. The next testifier is Lani Weigert.
MS. WEIGERT: Aloha, Members. Thank you so much for allowing me this opportunity.
My name is Lani Weigert, and I am the Co-Owner and Director of Marketing for
Alii Kula Lavender, which is the lavender farm Up country. I am also President of
the Hawaii Agritourism Association and I'm here today to talk to you about being
in support of Maui Economic Development Board. The reason that they have
impacted us so much is, personally, the lavender farm has been so far quite lucky
with diversifying with the tourism industry which has been extremely supportive
of keeping farmers on their farms so that they can continue to do what they love.
And the Maui Economic Development Board has played a very nice role with
regard to providing economic sustainability for us by exposing us to other
conferences and technology that has allowed us to be main players in agriculture.
And it isn't good enough that we know how to do this but then that we can train
other farmers how to do this is really key.
And Maui Economic Development Board has helped us with creating future labor
for us with their Kamaaina Come Home Program where they go to the different
states on the mainland and see the college students there and try to entice them to
come back home and work in our industries here. And as you know, agriculture
may not be the sexiest, coolest industry out there, but believe me, we are working
on it, and before you know it, people will be coming back to the land again. So
I'd like to thank them for that.
We also had a great opportunity of having their Youth Alliance group come up to
the lavender farm where we were able to teach them the importance and benefits
of agriculture and how they can be a major part of our community succession
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plan. So again, thank you so much for having me here. I'd like to also put in big
support for the Maui Visitors Bureau because without "Malama Maui" farmers
like us would not even be out there on the Richter scale. So we really appreciate
when they help us and allow us to train other farmers to diversify if it so fits them.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony this evening.
MS. WEIGERT: Thank you so much. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Dr. Art Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Aloha, Council People. Aloha. I'm Art Medeiros. I represent the
Leeward Haleakala Watershed Restoration Partnership. Probably you don't need
this reminder, but it's one of five watershed partnerships on Maui County. You all
know your role because you've been leaders in providing us support through the
years and we've done our best to take this support and take it to other
government, state, and federal monies and tried to match them. Oftentimes, at a
two to three match. We kind of shame them by saying, look at this money that
Maui County gave us, you can surely help us to take care our watersheds. I think
we all agree that Maui's population is growing by birth rate and by immigration
and they're not making anymore watershed. The time to take care of watershed is
now and to manage it correctly. I managed the watershed from Makawao to
Kaupo, a scenario that has seen some hard times over the years - home of some of
the best koa forest in the Hawaiian Islands. Only a little bit of that remains probably about 10 percent. But now kind of I believe we're right at that verge
now in working with Department of Hawaiian Home Lands and the number of
these State of Hawaii and a lot of the private ranches can we do something here
together for the mauka lands. And so I think we're on the verge of doing
something great and you all should feel proud of your role in that. We try to work
hard on that and so I thank you for your support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Dr. Medeiros? Seeing
none. Thank you for your testimony. The next testifier is Bill Tavares.
MR. TAVARES: Today's the 60th time I've appeared I think before this .... (laughter) . ..
I am Bill Tavares, Chairman of COMET since 1988 and my family has owned our
property in Kuau since 1910. The new Vikings are still pillaging Maui' s
oceanfront, gobbling up all available oceanfront lots. Robert Karpovich told me
that another movie star recently purchased a lot in Kuau, 12,508 square feet, for
$6 million. A distraught property owner in another area of Maui bought a lot in
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1965 for $50,000 is currently assessed at ... it was assessed rather in 2007 at seven
million plus and is currently assessed at nearly $11 million, an increase of 48
percent in one year. Now, the 34,891 square foot lot is assessed at $310.40 per
square foot. We're going to match Tokyo and Manhattan pretty soon.
This copy of the Maui oceanfront real ... residential real estate report makes these
statements. Listen to them very carefully, one, the passage of an affordable
housing bill and a "show me the water" bill will likely affect future developments.
Hooray! That's my comment. The number of oceanfront sales fell 11 percent
from 2006 to their lowest level in five years. Another hooray. This one, the Maui
oceanfront lot, continues to be considered a trophy by the new ... I'm sorry, not the
new Vikings, by the ... by the high-end buyers. How revealing of their motives.
That's my comment.
Finally, this comment is directed to the real estate industry. When advertising
oceanfront lots on Lamalani Cove, which means beautiful light, part of Tavares
Bay, be certain to include this information in your ads - according to the
University of Hawaii hypnea seaweed research team, which used our property as
a base for their research, Lamalani Cove has one of the worst hook seaweed
infestations in Hawaii which blankets the beach for six months each year. Will
you add that to your ads?
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. TAVARES: 1 hope you read ... have read Tony Fisher's newspaper. .. 1 mean
viewpoint in the last two Sundays ago in The Maui News and COMET strongly
urges this Council to finally adopt COMET's property tax reform proposal. Place
a cap in the name of heaven on annual assessments. This year end the present
morally reprehensible and indefensible current tax system. Oh, PS., Tony Fisher
and 1 tried to get an appointment with the Mayor and her Managing Director but
they said that they were too busy at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you for your testimony tonight?
MR. TAVARES: You've asked me a lot over the 20 years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Nicole Rios.
MS. RIOS: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee. My
name is Nicole Rios and I'm in the 9th grade at Maui High. 1 would like to ask for
your support of the MEO Youth Bank program and would like to thank you for
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funding this program in the past. To me this program has really made me become
a better person. Through coming here I have expanded my life skills, leadership
skills, and participated in Girl's Circle. In life skills I have learned how to budget
my money and how to put money into my bank account. In leadership skills I
have learned how to become a team player and work together to achieve whatever
we have to do. In Girl's Circle I have learned how to be more open and to say my
opinions. This program has made me able to go ... to come to a safe place after
school and learn new things. It has also given me a chance to make new friends.
Please support the funding for the MEO YouthBank program and transportation.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony. The next testifier is Dan Tiacy [sic]. Dan Tiacy
[sic]. T-I-A-C-y'
MR. FISHER: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Ian Fisher. I'm stepping
in for Dan Tracy. I'm part of a Maui-based company called Kite for Sail. We
develop Kite power systems for ocean going vessels, recreation ... recreational and
commercial vessels, and I'm here in support of the Maui Economic Development
Board. The Maui Economic Development Board has assisted our company in
many ways. They have a ... their networking assistance has led us to meet key
grant writers to help us fund our project, help us meet different business advisors,
and develop some different business strategies. Through their help we've been
able to acquire the Act 221 tax break which is very beneficial for us when looking
for investors. The development of these new high tech industries here in Hawaii
can be very beneficial to Maui and Hawaii's economy. So I thank you for your
support for the Maui Economic Development Board.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Could you say the name of
your business again?
MR. FISHER: It's called Kite for Sail.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's sails that ... 1 mean kites that are used to pull
vessels instead of propel?
MR. FISHER: Correct. The commercial shipping industry is one of the top polluters of
the planet's oceans and so kite sailing technology is very universal. It can be used
off any type of hull. It doesn't have to be a sailing hull. It can be used off a
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powerboat to help save fuel and reduce fuel. Recently, a German company who is
in the forefront of the industry completed a journey from Germany to Argentina
on a 600-foot freighter saving over. .. about $1,000 a day in fuel costs. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you for describing the business
because when you said kite, I said, well, it won't propel it, but it might pull it.
MR. FISHER: It does ... it doesn't exactly. It's not propulsion, -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. FISHER: --it's a pulling effect.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your testimony.
MR. FISHER: You're very welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you for your testimony this evening. The next testifier is Daniel
Ledesma.
MR. LEDESMA: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and the Budget Committee. My name
is Daniel Ledesma. I'm in 8th grade and I go Maui Waena. I have been in MEO
for about one year and I would like to thank you for supporting us in the past.
MEO YouthBank helped me do things instead of staying home like after school
and on breaks. MEO teaches us about tobacco and not doing bad things. We also
talked about peer pressure and how to budget our paychecks for in the future. We
got certified for CPR and first aid. MEO keeps me out of trouble like doing drugs
and drinking alcohol.
I learned a lot from the MEO staff. Uncle Mark is a volunteer in MEO. He helps
with culinary training. He comes when we cook or when we work sometimes.
This past year we went to Polipoli forest in Kula to help with the regrowth of
native plants and get rid of invasive plants. We also cleared areas of burnt trees
after the huge fire. I volunteered to work on a couple of Saturdays with ... for
culinary training. We made food for the workers in the airport and other places.
We went to the credit union to open an account. We opened an account to help us
learn how to save and deposit our money. We have been having trouble with the
vans. We would like to have new ones or to get them fixed. Please support MEO
YouthBank and MEO Transportation. It will help us and our friends be better
citizens ofMaui County. Thank you for the support. Thank you for the chance to
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support MEO YouthBank and everything you do to help the citizens of Maui
County.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you very much for your testimony. (NOTE: Daniel is walking towards his
seat.) Daniel, you do have a question. Member Baisa. (NOTE: Daniel returned
to the podium.)
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Easy question. Daniel, you mentioned that you have
trouble with the vans. Can you kinda tell me what's going on?
MR. LEDESMA: Like ... the batteries or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The batteries? ... (end of tape, start 2A at 7:04p.m.). ..
Nothing really serious. Okay.
MR. LEDESMA: Like it won't start.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: They won't start? ... (laughter) . .. Well, that's really
serious, because then you can't go anywhere. Well, we'll talk with somebody
who's responsible for that van. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Alex Kealoha.
MR. KEALOHA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is ... aloha, my name is
Alex Kealoha and I have been a client of the BEST Program ... the MEO BEST
Program for a little over three years. I would not be standing here today if it
wasn't for the BEST Program. I spent most of my life in prison. I grew up in
Paia. I know everything about this town. In my young kid days I used to play in
the cane fields. As I grew older I would smoke dope in the cane fields. When I
first was in the BEST Program, I was in Dorm 3 at MCCC. When I got out of
prison, I pretty much relapsed right away. I didn't always show up for my
appointments, but the BEST Program never gave up on me. I finally ended up in
the Salvation Army ARC Program and I have been clean and sober for over one
year. When I returned to Maui from Honolulu, I contacted Stacia. She and Joy
worked with me. I was able to get my CDL license. This was a big
accomplishment for me. I would not have made it without the BEST sending me
to CDL school. I have never studied so hard for anything in my whole life. It
feels great to have made it. I have a great job driving a water truck - my first job
ever. I make enough money to support my family. I now have a future with my
wife, my daughter, and my grandson, and it feels good. I would like to thank
God, the BEST Program, and my family for having faith in me and being there for
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me no matter what. And I also would like to thank the County for supporting
MEO's BEST Program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kealoha, for your testimony. Members, any
questions for the testifier? Thank you for sharing your story. The next testifier is
Jordan Jokiel.
MR. JOKIEL: Aloha and good evening. My name is Jordan Jokiel. I'm the coordinator
of the East Maui Watershed Partnership, and again, just very quickly, wanted to
thank you and say mahalo for your continued, continued support of watershed
protection on East Maui as well as throughout Maui County. As Dr. Medeiros
pointed out there are five watershed partnerships that you very generously support
through the Office of Economic Development and the Department of Water
Supply. And I've worked throughout the State and I just want to say that you
really are truly a model for other counties throughout the State. Like some of the
other people had indicated, we use your money to leverage State money as well as
Federal money and we try to maximize our efforts by coordinating on the ground
efforts with, with other agencies regarding helicopter time and staffing and just
strategizing for a lot of the work that we do. So again, thank you very much and
we really do appreciate your support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this
evening? Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. Walter
Enomoto.
MR. ENOMOTO: Good evening, Council Members. I'll be testifying both as myself as
an individual, as well as involved with the Maui Bicycle Alliance. Again, we ask
for your consideration in denying the $400,000 appropriation in the PaialHaiku
six-year capital program for the Baldwin Avenue bikeway greenway. We really
should wait for the downhill tour study to look at possible solutions and give you
folks a range of options in terms of how are we going to deal with downhill
industry in Maui County. Spending money now is putting the cart before the
horse. Why are we going down a path, literally, spending money when other
solutions may come up through that process? And as a responsible ... people
responsible for selecting projects that do or do not get funded, how can you justify
funding this project when it has not been validated through the study where there
might be more cost effective solutions to that?
One of the biggest reasons we have against the funding of this project is because
it takes funds ... federal funds that are matched with the bikeway funds to be used
for projects in bikeways, Hawaii, that benefits the local community. That's a
small pot of money that we have to spread around to all the communities and
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we're going to spend it on one project when we have two larger projects that have
been sitting for more than 10, almost 15 years now. It sets a bad example if we
can't finish what we've started and we're going to spend money on another one.
Also, you still have Act 181 authority to draft legislation. You folks could say no
more downhill tours. You have that authority now. So again, let's hold off on the
money. Wait 'till next year when the study is done and I'll support whatever
comes out of that study as long as it's fair. Okay.
The other area I wanted to talk about was in the April 18t Maui News. They ran
down a list of budget items. In the Office of the Mayor there was $4.25 million
appropriated for renewable energy projects, both the bio-crop development
renewable energy programs, ... {inaudible}. . . plug in hybrids. Speaking as
myself, I'm also involved in the renewable energy field. I'm a business manager
with the local renewable energy company that has installed closed to one
megawatt of solar energy across the State. I was the former Commercial and
Industrial Energy Efficiency Manager for Maui Electric and it's sad that while the
rage and the talk is all about renewables--wind, solar, bio-fuels--that's great. But
what gets left out of the mix is why are we going to fund all of these things and
have inefficient equipment powering inefficient chillers, lighting systems, pumps,
motors, and other things? Any renewable energy person who is honest enough to
say that energy efficiency measures as well as renewable energy have to be at
least tied together. In fact, for every dollar you spend on efficiency you save $3 to
$4 towards the cost of what a renewable energy source would have to supply.
There's nothing in the budget talking about that, even mentioning that, or even
putting any money toward energy efficiency. And the County collectively, if you
looked at all the departments, Public Works, Parks and Rec, Water Department,
how much energy the County of Maui uses. I would bet my bottom dollar that
they're among the top three largest energy users in Maui County. Maui County
itself is probably one of the biggest chunks of entities that are using electricity
that is produced here. Why is not energy efficiency as emphasized -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. ENOMOTO: --and prioritized as much as renewable energy? And it is important
that you folks ask the questions to the Administration, to Public Works, what other
energy efficiency measures are being done to work with renewable energy
programs and development as we go forward. If there's no other questions or if
there's any questions I can answer them.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, you complete with your testimony?
MR. ENOMOTO: Yes. Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you
very much. I think you provided this Committee with some good information
regarding renewable energy and the emphasis in searching for all these different
alternatives, but yet we need to take a look at the efficiency of what we do as a
County.
MR. ENOMOTO: Actually, you folks really did a good job in funding the Public Works
Highway Division. A few years ago over the course of I think three budget fiscal
years you supported them in retrofitting all of the traffic lights from the old
incandescent lights to the LED lights and that had huge energy savings. I mean in
comparison with all the rest of the energy use the County has it was small. But
just in that one area you folks had big savings and that was funded by the Council
to ... for them to go ahead and do that. I saw the savings myself and they were
really good. But again, those are the types of things that need to go hand in hand
with renewable energy. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Walter, for your testimony. The next testifier is
Andrea Buckman.
MS. BUCKMAN: Aloha. Good evening. My name is Andrea Buckman and I work for
the Leeward Haleakala Watershed Restoration Partnership. I just want to let you
know that we manage 43,000 acres from Makawao to Kaupo. We work to protect
and restore some of the last remaining dry land and koa forests in the State. These
forests are important and valuable because they provide much needed water, fire
resistance, and cultural resources, and biological resources as in habitat for our
rare birds and plus the native insects. Part of this ... part of our work involves
community outreach. We bring volunteers up to help us plant native plants and
last year we planted over 13,000 native plants - many of them rare and
endangered. The Maui County Council is recognized Statewide for their
progressive support of our watershed partnership programs, and it's, you know, as
they said before, without your help we, we couldn't be doing the things we're
doing. But it is an uphill battle, and throughout the next year and longer, we're
going to be focus on ... focusing on projects out in Kahikinui and this provides a
unique opportunity for State and local agencies and our local community to work
together towards restoring and protecting this very beautiful and special area. So
we appreciate your past and continued support for protecting Maui's cultural and
biological resources. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member
Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Buckman, I failed to
ask Dr. Medeiros this question so I'm going to ask you. You did say you folks
planted about 13,000 native plants in the restoration project and how many of
those will become trees as restoring the forest area?
MS. BUCKMAN: We have a really high success rate and over. .. well over 90 percent of
the . . . (inaudible). . . trees and native plants that we plant survive. It's an
amazing project that is setting, setting standards throughout the State and
providing good examples.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and what kind of trees are the ones that will
grow to be the canopy of the watershed area?
MS. BUCKMAN: Koa ... koa forests. Acacia koa is what we focus on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. BUCKMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier this evening is Maggie Welker.
MS. WELKER: Good evening. Thank you for listening. I'm here as a citizen tonight to
sing the praise of Maui Economic Development Board. Don't worry I won't
actually sing. .., (laughter). .. I have--what did I --most inspiring to me about
Maui Economic Development Board is the way that they fostered a civic
engagement in myself. I look to them through their very well done media. I see
them in the newspaper and read about things I was inspired by them to participate
in the Hawaii 2050 Sustainability talks. I really appreciated that. I also
appreciate about MEDB that they walk the talk. I know that their new building is
solar powered - sustainability and diversity being their most attractive emphasis
in my mind. And also I know that as far as the civic engagement goes and their
promotion of volunteerism I see their staff doing that as well. I worked recently
with Rochelle at the fundraiser for the Manao Radio. So I see that they're a very
valuable organization in inspiring community involvement and I would encourage
you to support them so that they could continue to inspire people like myself.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this evening?
Seeing none. Thank you very much. Members, I'm going to call the next
testifier. As soon as the next testifier is completed with her testimony, we'll take a
10-minute recess. So the next testifier is Stella Rivers.
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MS. RIVERS: Aloha and thanks for being here tonight. I'm Stella Rivers the
Co-Director of the Maui Film Festival. Barry, the Director, is in LA. He regrets
not being here but I'm here to thank you on ... for your support, the support of the
County Council and Mayor Tavares, Maui Film Office headed by Benita Brazier,
and also the MEDB with Jeanne Skog. This year the 24,000 that the County of
Maui has provided for us was leveraged many, many times over by various
sponsors and supporters and businesses. As importantly, the 2007 Maui Film
Festival generated more than three hundred million media impressions around the
globe with an estimated value of nearly $15 million - talks with CNN, STARZ,
et cetera, et cetera, LA Times.
As importantly among the 20,000 admissions to the film premieres, filmmaker
panels and culinary arts celebrations of the 2007 Festival in Wailea, last June's
Maui Film Festival provided more than 2,000 complimentary admissions to keiki
12 and under to experience our under the stars celestial cinema in Wailea. So lots
of kids really got to experience that thing and we gave away a ton of tickets which
was just great. The 2007 Festival also generated several million ... several million
dollars in additional direct and indirect visitor expenditures and also employed
nearly 100 paid festival staff in addition to nearly 300 volunteers who donated
over 20,000 hours of their time to help the event run smoothly.
I also want to take this opportunity to thank one of our key partners in addition of
course to the properties in Wailea and to thank Jeanne Skog and her team of
MEDB. We often go to her for counsel. She always has wise advice in areas of
fiscal management and interfacing with our State funding through the HTA. She's
been totally invaluable with MEDB. As you are also aware, the MEDB has a line
item in the County Budget that deals with assistance to Maui businesses and we
take great pride along with many other companies in being part ofMEDB's effort
to diversify the Maui economy. In closing, I just want to reiterate Maui in my
personal appreciation and the staff of the Maui Film Festival for your heartfelt and
important assistance in helping the Maui Film Festival in Wailea and the Maui
Arts and Cultural Center continue. We hope you'll all attend our ninth year this
June. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony this evening.
MS. RIVERS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we're going to take a short break. We'll reconvene
the meeting at about 7:30. This meeting is in recess .... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

7:21 p.m.

RECONVENE: 7:32 p.m.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. The next testifier this evening is Irene Yoakum.
MS. CRAWFORD: Hello. I'm Susan Crawford and I'm replacing Irene because she had
to leave and I am ... 1 work with MEO and I have a letter from one of our clients.
It's Mildred Okuda and her husband is Tadashi Okuda and he's a client that we
transport everyday. So I'm going to read this letter as well as give testimony of
my own.
Dear County Council Members, thank you very much for providing the MEO bus
service. We really appreciate it and are grateful for the services. My husband has
Alzheimer's and goes to Hale Makua Day Health everyday. In the beginning I
used to pick him up every afternoon but now MEO bus brings him home everyday
and that is a big relief for me. I would like to urge you to continue these services.
It means an awful lot to us. And that is thanking you again from Mildred Okuda.
And the testimony on my own is, I am fortunate to have two moms and they're
both aging and one of them has Alzheimer's and the other one recently suffered a
stroke and is paralyzed on her right side. And I am able to use the MEO services
to get my stepmother to the Day Health Services and I'm also able to use the
MEO services to take my mom to doctors appointments and to even take her out
to just to see the world, you know, because when you're paralyzed and your
whole life has changed, your world is just limited to your bed and the people that
are taking care of you. And she's a large woman like myself and I can't ... 1 barely
can lift her into a wheelchair. There's no way I can transport her in my own car.
So I am so grateful for these services and for all of you for allowing, you know,
MEO to provide them to the many clients that we have. And please, thank you
and continue to do it. I. .. we appreciate it. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Irene. Members, questions for the testifier at this
time? Seeing none. Thank you for your testimony. David Lindsay.
MR. LINDSAY: Good evening, Council Members. First and foremost, I've left a copy
of this with you. First and foremost, on behalf of the Olinda community I want to
thank you for your continued effort over the last three years supporting Mike and
all and doing the paving up there. It's made a whale of a difference for the people
in particularly in that AlaluanalNee Road area as couple ladies lived down in there
that were trapped. So I mean it's not ... anyway it's good and we thank you.
The safety issue we continue to ask for support in the upgrading of an existing
substandard water distribution line along Piiholo and Alaluana Roads that provide
water for the community and domestic ... domestic water and firefighting use. Of
particular concern is the need for the fire protection in those areas. I happen to be
Chair of the fire mitigation up there and that pine forest is a serious concern.
We're working with the State on giving it some relief, cutting back on some of
that.
The other safety issue and this is the second time I've spoken on it. It's
paramount concern to the community is the existing worsening hazards posed by
tree root upheaval in the pavement of the upper areas of Olinda and Piiholo.
These humps are large enough that any driver that is aware of their locations will
tend to steer around them and expose themselves to the risk of being hit by
oncoming vehicles. Interestingly, it appears to be the majority of the humps are
located at or near blind corners, which I might add is not surprising and neither
are these roads.
These humps have adversely ... have to adversely affect
emergency vehicles. If you imagine riding in an ambulance having the patient
and the EMT being jostled around during their ride down the hill - I added here I
have personally experienced it and it's no fun, but ... for either the patient or the
EMT I'm sure.
And last, Item 4, we fully solicit your support for the proposed Up country
reservOIr.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, David. Thank you for your testimony
and for all your efforts for the community to come out and testify for the need to
repair Piiholo and Olinda Roads and Alaluana. With regards to the tree roots and
upheaving the pavements so are you maybe suggesting the County look at some
kind of maintenance ... maybe yearly maintenance?
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MR. LINDSAY: Yes. I am suggesting that. I'm begging for it. Actually, we are ... 1
understand that the State and the County legal beagles [sic] are arguing about the
custody of the road itself. We can't do anything about that but we understand that
the County does maintain certain situations like filling the holes and stuff. So if
they can get the worst and I'm saying if they could be directed to get the worst of
those cut out and shaved down and, and paved over, it would be a major safety
advance in my opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, David. I'll make sure to bring it to the
attention of the Public Works Department for consideration.
MR. LINDSAY: They're pretty well aware of it, but good, I hope you do.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Robert Mason. Robert Mason.
Not here. Sandy Baz.
MR. BAZ: Good evening, Committee Members. It's my pleasure to address you for
actually the second time today and I'd like to thank you for coming to my
community. I live in Haiku and appreciate that you go out to the different
communities to hear the messages of the citizens of the area so that they can share
with you what their concerns are and what their needs are. A question came up in
the deliberations on the Department of Transportation budget today about the
future requests that ... especially the services that MEO provides, the door-to-door
service or curb-to-curb service that we provide that specialize transportation and
how that might be ... the cost of that might be alleved [sic] over the future and
MEO has been working with our FederaL .. our Congressional team. The
Department of. .. the Federal Department of Transportation reauthorization bill is
coming up this coming year.
This next ... during this next fiscal year, this current request we're asking for $2
million for our transportation facility, our CIP request. And then in the future
reauthorization we're actually asking for funding for operations of our programs,
too. It was mentioned by Mr. Medeiros that we are growing to be a size of the
community that is more eligible for urban funds which is one benefit. Also, MEO
has prepared itself for acceptance of Federal dollars for our operations as well
and, and we're set up now to be able to accept those. Also, and something has
come up recently with the Department of Transportation on the Federal level
making it not a requirement that they go out to bid for the Federal dollars. If it's
part of a County project, then it doesn't need to be actually go on out to bid so
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that's another consideration.
definitely for the future.

So that's, that's something that we're looking at

We definitely want to diversify. We've also requested from the State funds
for. .. especially our dialysis ... the Public Health benefits. Vans - you heard from
about this evening. We actually would ... we talked to Councilmember Medeiros
from Hana. Our Hana van is in dire need of replacement and he mentioned that
he might be able to support a van in Hana and we would appreciate that. Cost of
that would be between $35,000 and $40,000 and that's for a IS-passenger, you
know, typical van that you would see. And then for our main facility
transportation request I also wanted to mention that we are looking at going to
implement LEED which is the energy efficiency ... the construction efficiency and
then eventually the operational efficiencies along with that. You know, MEO, we
can, we can -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BAZ: --look at of course funding the facility buildings but if we build this
wonderful facility and it takes, you know, huge amount of money to operate in the
future, it would be, you know, kinda shooting ourselves in the foot. So if we
prepare now to implement those kind of things, reducing our electricity usage by
putting photovoltaic systems in there, reducing our air conditioning usage by
having open areas, and different things that can be implemented into the design
and the construction of the facility, it will actually be saving us money in the long
term. Most State projects now are required to be LEED appropriate and we'd like
to be able to do that as well. So it may cost a little bit more. I talked to a major
developer that does a LEED implementation yesterday and he said it costs about 5
percent more for the project, but in the long run that we could save quite a bit
more money -MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. BAZ: --so we're going to be working on that as well. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this evening?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I want to ask you a little about this idea of door-to-door
servIce.
MR. BAZ: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's my understanding, and you know, I've been a little
out of touch with any recent additions to the ADA rules that I was around when
they were implemented but they may have changed. Isn't it the rule that County
will be required to provide service that is equal to or better than what we provide
to anyone else to people with disabilities?
MR. BAZ: Yes. Actually, there is a requirement. If the County does implement a mass
transportation system and it utilizes the funds for mass transportation system, they
are also required to include what's called a complimentary paratransit system.
And you have been utilizing MEO services to fulfill that Federal requirement over
the past many years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So if we have many seniors who are allegedly certified to
be disabled, then we would have to go to their doors?
MR. BAZ: To a point. Yeah. The complimentary paratransit that's required by the
Federal government it has to ... you are required to pick up within three-quarters of
a mile from a stop. So Maui's community is very rural and what happens is that

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We don't have stops. . .. (chuckles) ...
MR. BAZ: Well, that's a whole other issue of the year.
Committee will be looking at.

Hopefully, your Planning

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. BAZ: But from the designated stops that we do have - the three-quarters of a mile.
So within a range of three-quarters of a mile is what according to the Federal
requirements are required and that wouldn't include many, many areas. Not just
in Kahului and Wailuku, but if...1 mean not just in, you know, Up country or
Lahaina, those kinds of things, it includes most ofMaui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Also, the moot ... the transportation is a moot issue if you
can't get to ... out of your house and into the bus.
MR. BAZ: That is another issue, and you know, our clients have mentioned sometimes
that they can't and we have gone into their houses to get them into the wheelchair
to take them to the doctors and it's something that our staff is trained to do as
well.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think often, you know, there's some misunderstanding
that all this is about singing and dancing and having fun. . .. (end of tape, start 2B
at 7:47 p.m.). .. go to pick people up in their houses so they can go have fun. But
a lot of the people that MEO picks up, my understanding is that's their lifeline.
MR. BAZ: A lot of times it is their lifeline. It's their lifeline to doctors. It's their lifeline
to be able to go shopping on their own. And another idea that, that maybe doesn't
come out a lot is that a lot of MEO's transportation that we provide is for the
youth and that's not necessarily door-to-door service. That's services that we're
providing from after school programs to ... from the schools to the after school
programs. And if you ... I'm sure you've heard from different communities that
the, the kids wouldn't be able to get to the after school program without the
transportation being made available to them. If the transportation wasn't there,
what would happen is that the parents would have to get off of work to transfer
their child from the school to the after school program or they wouldn't be able to
work and that's a whole other economic issue to deal with.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The only reason I ask you this is because there is a very
distinct difference between the public transit service and what it offers and what
the specialized MEO service offers.
MR. BAZ: Most definitely. The, the ... well, that's another question ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And yeah, well, you know, you wouldn't have to belabor
that.
MR. BAZ: I don't know how to answer that question, but yeah ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But the thing is that we have to think about this, and yes,
we could have only the public service but it wouldn't meet a lot of the needs of
the people that use the MEO system.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. I mean, well, you've heard me mention before the MEO's ... well,
Maui County's transportation system was kind of built, I don't want to say built
backwards, but was built in a different manner than generally what you see and
what the Federal government requirements have been with the required
paratransit. The specialized transportation that MEO provides was built first and
then the mass transit was, was laid on top of that. So it's kind of a different, you
know, first, normally it was the mass transit that was built first and then the
paratransit.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Anyway, I guess so that we can pay for all of it, thank
you for your efforts at the Federal level. I think that's really where we need to go.
MR. BAZ: Also, the ... 1, I think that your, well, that Mr. Medeiros' idea of getting a
lobbyist for the transportation or for generally is an incredibly great idea and have
personally been in discussions with somebody who has the expertise in building
the transportation bill at the Federal level in the ... in Congress, somebody who
used to work for a senator that, that does that work now and I'd be happy to share
information as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good. Well, you might want to share that with
Mr. Medeiros and I do believe it's a great idea. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions? If not, thank you for
being here, Sandy.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Briana Lagrimas-Melendez.
MS. LAGRIMAS-MELENDEZ: Good evening. Thank you for time. My name is
Briana Lagrimas-Melendez and I'm a sophomore at King Kekaulike High School.
So there are many places in this world to care about and these places include
Maui County, our community. I'm always hearing people complain about the
community and never taking a stand to actually improve them. Today's adults
strive to make the difference in our community now but who will make ... who
will be the next to make the difference in the future. Unfortunately, I was one of
those people who complained about the community and taking no stand. So I'm
here to speak to the importance of Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance.
As a teenager, it's hard to think that I could make a difference and help my
community. Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance came along, opened my eyes, and
handed me the opportunity to make a difference and help my community.
Members of the program are given the chance to experience what is offered in our
community and to explore the problems that are around us. Focus Maui Nui
Youth Alliance travels around the islands to places such as the Akaku Public
Television Station, Maui Memorial Hospital where we had a guest speaker,
Councilmember Molina, and Maui Count ... Maui Community College Culinary
Arts.
Members acquire the knowledge of how various occupations contribute to the
community and how we can get involved. Not only does Focus Maui Nui
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Alliance bring teenagers together to help improve the community, but it creates
new friendships, unforgettable memories, valuable knowledge, and knowing we
created a better community for ourselves and especially everyone else. I also on
behalf of Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance, your consideration in continuing this
program because it offers teenagers invaluable experiences who want to make
changes. I told you in the beginning today's adults are the ones who make the
difference in our community now. And my question was, but who will be the next
to make the difference in the future? Please take ... please think about what I've
addressed and remember who your future is. We teenagers are your future.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members ... question, Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Briana, and thank you for coming here
and it takes a lot of courage to come up here in front of a bunch of adults and
testify. I must say I was really impressed with your group. Can I ask you one
quick question. From what you have learned from being part of this Focus Maui
Nui Youth Alliance, when you go back to your school and some of your
classmates complain about all the problems in our community, what do you tell
them now after the experience you've had with Focus Maui Nui?
MS. LAGRIMAS-MELENDEZ: Well, this is my first year and I've experienced a lot
and when they complain about the community, I tell them to stand up because,
you know, even though we're teenagers we can make a difference and we are the
people of the community.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Very good. Thank you.
MS. LAGRIMAS-MELENDEZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Chris Speere.
MR. SPEERE: Thank you, young lady. You made my night. Thank you. That was a
wonderful presentation. Thank you, Council People, for being here tonight. My
name is Chris Speere and I serve as the program coordinator for the Maui
Culinary Academy. There are three things that bring us together in Hawaii and
spark our passion. One is our values, our culture, and food. .., (laughter). . .
And I'm very remiss tonight, I didn't bring any food. But I'm here tonight to
speak on ... I'm here tonight to speak on behalf of Maui Economic Development
Board, their efforts to support food, their efforts to support diversified agriculture
in Hawaii, and their support of the Maui Food Technology Center. The Maui
Food Technology Center mission is to provide resources in the development of
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new and value added food products, products that are created primarily from ...
(inaudible) . .. , crop overages, and waste, but they provide valuable resources and
funds for farmers taking these products and turning them into revenue.
We're at a critical point I believe in our approach to food in Hawaii. We have to
rethink and truly support and teach about the need to support locally produced
products and food sources. I have a lot of connections in the food community,
obviously, as a chef. I was speaking with friends from Haleakala Ranch. They
are concerned that you cannot find their beef anywhere except in Longs Drugs
and Pukalani Superette. I spoke to a farmer today that owns Kapuna [sic] Ranch.
They're growing taro above Waihee and the lands that used to be dedicated to
macadamia nuts and they came to the college. They brought the most beautiful
taro you could imagine - taro which has deep significance and tradition in how
we eat on these islands. They brought the taro to the college and with the hope
that our chefs would utilize the taro in our menu preparations. But beyond that
you can foresee that they're going to have overages. They're going to have to
find other ways to bring that taro into the marketplace, be it poi, be it candy, be it
chips. The Maui Food Technology Center is poised to provide that service to
allow farmers an outlet, allow farmers another way to drive revenues.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. SPEERE: So in closing, I'm here just to ask that anything ag related, anything food
related, you take a hard look at and remember that the importance of food is truly
important in Hawaii. It brings us together and makes us who we are and we need
to support that for our future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this evening?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chris. Could you give us an idea of some of
the products that the food folks are working on right now?
MR. SPEERE: Yes. Actually, very exciting. The Technology Center just got up in
operation in early February in working with a local entrepreneur who is looking at
creating a coffee syrup and a pineapple syrup and they're working with the local
rum producer. They're working with a local candy maker. They also are in
conversation with Hamakua Macadamia Nut Farm to create a snack product for
the airline industry. .., (laughter). . . But again ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: They don't give snacks anymore.
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MR. SPEERE: Yeah, I know. And of course, at the college we're training and teaching
students in the beginning stages of product development, primarily in recipe
development, and ... so we're germinating the next generation of food producers in
Maui County. We have nine food products that we have in the marketplace.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Sally Handley.
MS. HANDLEY: Good eve ... I'm short .... (adjusting mic) . .. Good evening, Council
Members and everybody else here tonight. My name is Sally Handley and I'm a
loan fund manager with MEO Business Development Corporation. I've worked
there for little over five years now. I have a letter here that a client really wanted
me to read to you but before I do, I just wanted to remind you about what we do at
MEO BDC. I know you already know but I need to remind you.
We ... we're kind of a full-service business economic development company. We
teach a class in business planning. We also give micro loans from $500 to
$10,000 initially and step loans up to $25,000. We take you from start of the
business to the end of the business when you do finally get a loan and even then
when you get a loan from MEO Business Development Corp., I don't leave you
alone. I stand beside the client, and you know, assist them and counsel them as
they do their business until they payoff the loan. That means I also do collections
which, you know, can be a distasteful job, but it's a learning experience from, you
know, both me and our client. And part of collections is teaching them about
credit reporting which has been a big component of what we do at MEO BDC.
So when an inquiry comes in I take it in as a loan officer and I've counseled them
as to, you know, where they are in their business, whether they're newcomers, or
whether they've had a business for a few years and they, they're like in a rut and
they can't see out of the box so to speak. Then I gear them over to Susie
Thieman's class, our CEO, she teaches the business planning class. After they
take ... after they do that, they ... if they need a loan from us, so apply to me and I'll
help them polish up their business plan, counsel them around their credit if need
be, and then we present it to an internal committee at MEO, and they just check to
see if it's viable. That same day if it passes the internal committee, we go to the
external committee, and they're made up of bankers from like Bank of Hawaii,
American Savings Bank, as well as people that have gone through our program
and have had successful businesses. So it's really a win-win situation. We have
lots of success stories. You've heard them, you know, through the years.
So I wanted to read this letter from Kirk Greenman. Kirk Greenman wanted to
testify in Molokai when you folks were there but he showed up at 5:30 and there
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was nobody there. He stayed till 6:00 and there was nobody there. And there
were some other people there as well, some other clients that were going to speak
on behalf ofMEO BDC but they left at about 6:20. So he wanted me to read this
to you today here in Paia because he thought it might get lost in all the people that
will be coming to the Wailuku testimony. So ...
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. HANDLEY: Oh gosh, three minutes already. Okay. I'll just read it real fast. Dear
Council Member, I had taken Susie Thieman's Core Four Business Planning
course on Molokai and had several ideas for another business here. I'd seen
Susie's course posted and my girlfriend and I had decided to take it. Starting a
business is very costly and difficult. Okay. A year and a half gone ... went by and
I finally came across a storefront that was available. Susie had a new job title in
Mol. .. on Maui and Kuulei Arce, who heads the program on Molokai, she took me
through the long procedure in getting a loan for my new business venture. Kuulei
ran my credit for me. She revised my business plan and get it up-to-date. She
helped me create a winning business plan that is almost completed. My opening
date is April ... in late April.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. HANDLEY: I believe Kuulei's presence here on Molokai is a positive one. With
the ranch closing, I believe that there are a lot of people wanting to start their own
businesses and this would be Kuulei's busiest year yet. I also believe Kuulei and
her staff should be supported here on Molokai. It's very expensive - gas and
electricity and cost of living is very high. Sincerely, Kirk J. Greenman, owner of
Molokai Mini Mart.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you very much for being here this evening. The next testifier is Kay Jackson.
MS. JACKSON: Good evening, Members. I'm here tonight to testify in favor of having
Ulumalu Road repaved this year. As Ms. Baisa said, a picture is worth a thousand
words so I brought you a couple pictures of our road. It has not been resurfaced
since 1997 and from Hana Highway to Five Comers is a little over a mile but
there are nine roads off of it that go to subdivisions. We have a rodeo arena so
horses and trucks are going up and down and then people travel also up to
Kaupakalua and on to Up country Maui. So with Councilman Molina's help we
determined that Ulumalu Road is on the priority rating for resurfacing this year
and I thank you for that. I just want to make sure it stays there and that Ulumalu
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Road becomes safe once again.
listening.

Thank you very much for your time and for

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you
very much for being here. Next testifier is Claire Sheehall [sic].
MS. SHEEHAN: Good evening, Council Chair and Council Members. My name is
Claire Sheehan. I work with the Maui Humane Society and I've been with them
for over 14 years and I really just wanted this evening to thank you for your
continued support and to get a chance to actually give a report card for this
particular community so they know why your support is so important to them
because these are just a little glimpse of the services we provide the Paia, Haiku,
and Makawao communities. We take in islandwide over 10,000 ... 10,435 animals
and 20 percent, 2,000 animals, came from these three communities making this
district. So also in the area of animal control and at this point I do also want to
thank Council for recognizing our animal control officers by doing the
proclamation for National Animal Control Week which we are now in. We have
7.5 officers that provide seven day a week coverage and this includes after hour
emergencies. The Department received over 10,800 calls this year and so that
actually averages out to 1,400 calls for each officer and once again these are not
just simple calls and pass it on to an investigative team. They take it from the
initia1...first initial scene investigation all the way up to court appearances. And
so that is a bit major amount of work that they do and we thank you for
recognizing them.
For this community, out of the 455 citations that Animal Control has issued
islandwide, 54 percent have been from this district due to our beaches.
Thirty-three percent of leash law citations were directly from this Paia, Haiku, and
Makawao area and we try to respond. This is the area that our public, our visitors,
and our own general public relish in trying to make it safe for both animal lovers
that take their dogs and, and people that can't fall victim to dogs that are not
behaving well is a very big concern for us. So we know how you folks can help
us by just continuing the support that you give us and support his year's budget
and I would just like to ask the community also to support us by being good
animal citizens with your animals. Follow our guidelines that we have citizens
guide to how to be a good animal owner. We also ask if you can adopt, that will
help us with our numbers. If you need a pet, please come to us, don't go to pet
stores. And also please, take advantage of our spay/neuter programs. You know,
all these type of things that you can do can help us concentrate the little money
that we do have to a brighter ... broader spectrum which we'll get out to the public
once again. So thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Sheehan. Members, question for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you for your testimony. The next testifier is Penny
Dearborn.
MS. DEARBORN: (NOTE: She adjusted the microphone stand) I'm five feet tall .
. . . (chuckled) . .. My name is Penny Dearborn. I'm Director of Animal Care
with the Maui Humane Society. I'm the newest addition that they have there.
Claire has given you all the stats on the animals. I'm going to give you the
heartstrings on the animals. I came from a large facility on the mainland. I ran a
private facility. I also worked with the City, the County, and the State. It's
absolutely amazing to me how good you guys are. I lived a nightmare over there
compared to this. You guys are just absolutely amazing the way you've, you
know, are there when they're needed.
My particular facility and the part that I do are the ones that we care for the
animals once they're in. We have a staff of six. Their job is to take care of the
animals from the time they hit the shelter until they leave either adopted or when
we have to put them down - one way or the other. These people have to ... their
job starts like this in the morning, okay. They come into the door, they punch in,
they put their stuff in their locker, they lead their animals out to the area that's
available for them to play outside. They walk into this, they have to shovel the
poop, then they bleach it, then they put ... the stuff on that breaks down the dirt,
then they get a brush and scrub everything down, then they go in with something
that we call the purple stuff. It's called Fabuloso. Everybody comments on how
good it smells in the shelter now. They then spray it down, they have to wipe it
down. Then they have to go through and make sure all their dishes are cleaned
and sanitized, food is filled, water is filled, the animals are brought back in and
then they go to the next group of four or five.
Our shelter is so small we can't take everybody out at once. We have to do it in
groups of four. We only have one on each side of the whole thing for the dogs.
So everything has to be done between 8:00 and 10:00 when we open. This is not
an easy job. It's very physical. I go in and work it along with them. I seldom sit
at my desk. The staff that does the cat building, it's the same thing. They walk in
the door. There are 75 dogs that have to be taken care of. That's our average all
the time there. We have about the same number of cats until cat season hits us,
kitten season, then we have up in the triple digits. Litter boxes have to be
dumped. Everything has to be sprayed and cleaned and scrubbed. All bedding
has to be pulled out and replaced. The animals, all of 'em, have to be checked to
see if we need a vet to check them out or a vet staff has to check them out. All
these people have to do all of this plus roosters, pigs. I met a mountain pig, guys,
my first week here - 380 pounds. . .. (inaudible). .. Okay. It was very

- 43 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 8, 2008
Paia Community Center

interesting. It was a good training session. All this has to be done before 10:00 in
the morning plus these people have to talk to the public when they come on, what
are you looking for, what would you like to see, go up front and fill out your
paperwork, we'll bring the animal out for you to visit. They have to know what
they're talking about or they get in trouble.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. DEARBORN: Thank you. They have to do all of this and we have a hard time
keeping it staffed because they make more money at McDonald's. So we really
appreciate everything that you do for us and anything that you can do for an
increase over the years is forever grateful. I invite all of you to come and visit us
and please walk through the shelter with me and I'll give you a personal tour.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Molina.

Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Member

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hi, Penny. Thank you for your very compelling
testimony and information. I have to ask. About at what point do you euthanize
an animal if it's not ... hasn't been claimed? How many days?
MS. DEARBORN: Well, it depends on if it's an owner, you know, if we've got a collar
on it, it stays so many days. If it comes in just straight, it's got a couple of days.
A lot of determinations are something that, you know, again, it depends on room,
which unfortunately happens a lot where the ... 1 went through the other day and I
had to pick critters that had to go down and there wasn't anybody that was bad,
sick, you know, what do you do. What do you do? Then you have start looking at
who's been there the longest, who's the least likely to be taken, who's maybe the
oldest. I'm the oldest one, that's dirty pool, you knOw. I mean this is ... this is not
easy but we keep them as long ... we've got someone we've had since October and
November. As long as we've got room and they've got that kind of personality,
we try to work with the staff who likes them. You know, they have a tendency to
get attached to one or two and they stick around a little longer. But if we had the
room, it would be an indefinite period. There wouldn't be a, oh, you're here 48
hours, so we gotta see ya.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. After the animal has been euthanized, then you
just do cremation afterwards?
MS. DEARBORN: Yes. We have a cremation set up, which for coming from the
mainland, I really do think that's a wonderful way for the animals to finish to
Rainbow Bridge.

- 44-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 8, 2008
Paia Community Center

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. DEARBORN: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The next testifiers are both from MCC Nursing
Program. We do have Melissa Anderson and Tara ... Tarrah Tokishi.
MS. ANDERSON: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Melisa Anderson.
I'm a second-year nursing student at Maui Community College. I've very proud
to say that I'll be graduating in May after a very long journey of trying to get
accepted into a nursing program. I started about nine years ago on the mainland,
then coming to Oahu, always working in the medical field as a surgical
technologist wondering why I wasn't chosen because I knew I was right for the
job and I would do a good job. After figuring out that Maui Community College
took work history into account, I immediately applied and was taken in right
away. This last two years from the support from the County ... from the Council
Members and everyone, the enrollment has increased now from 80 to 160 a year.
We have two graduating classes a year which has been excellent and we're very
proud of that and we just ... we want to thank you for your support very much.
And we hope, just on a side note, that one day that all of these graduates will be
able to stay in Maui County and have jobs as RN s here. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Melisa, when you graduate, what would you have - an
RN?
MS. ANDERSON: I will have my registered nurse. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
program?

Wonderful.

Congratulations.

Through a two-year

MS. ANDERSON: Yes. It is a career ladder program so after our first year we do sit for
the NCLEX for the LPN, which is the licensed practical nurse, which is a ... it's
different for most programs around the mainland and here on the islands. So it's a
really great opportunity for those who need to stop and be with their families, be
with their children. They can stop and work as LPNs and then go on for the extra
year and get your registered nurse.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's terrific!
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MS. ANDERSON: Yeah. It's been great.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Congrats.
MS. ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier, Tarrah.
MS. TOKISHI: I am born and raised on Maui. Went to school on the mainland, but yet I
came back to Maui to attend MCC's Nursing Program. It's a very respected
program and being from Maui I wanted to go to school here and then give back to
my community and with your funding and your support, we are now able to have
the two admitting programs, you know, and to give double the amount of. .. or
produce double the amount of nurses that will hopefully stay here on Maui. And
so I appreciate that and we're here to thank you for that. We also wanted to
mention about some of the programs we are also able to start with your help
which was the Dental Assistant Program.
MS. ANDERSON: Dental Hygienist.
MS. TOKISHI: Dental Hygienist Program.
MS. ANDERSON: The Maui ... the dental van that's provided for the underinsured.
MS. TOKISHI: Yeah.
MS. ANDERSON: So that's been a really good help for the community. We've worked
out in the resource center in the community and that's been one thing that they've
always talked to me about and always want the schedule for. So it's been great
for the children and the adults out in the community that are underinsured for
dental. Thank you.
MS. TOKISHI: Yeah. So we're providing, you know, health and dental oral care and I
think that's fabulous. And Maui is growing, and you know, a lot of our resources
still need to be growing as well. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimonies. The next testifier is John ... Jan Dapitan. Jan.
MS. DAPITAN: Good evening, Council. I'm here to ask you and to thank you. Thank
you for the long partnership we've had. The Community Work Day Program's
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focus is on litter control, beautification, solid waste initiatives, and community
improvement. One of the most outstanding projects we've had recently happened
almost by chance where we went up about six years ago to the old Maui High
School and we had been called because it had been graffitied [sic] and littered and
had been neglected. And we started with a clean up which has now revealed an
outstanding historic site. It has a future, and the Community Work Day Program
in developing a nonprofit support group called Friends of Old Maui High School,
who will be in charge of the restoration ... (end a/tape, start 3A at 8:18 p.m.) . ..
historic preservation aspects partner. We partner with them in this dream and this
evidently, you know, a very practical step-by-step.
This year's Budget caught us a little bit, you know, by surprise, when in the
Budget, we realized that in the operations and old Maui High School section that
the Old Maui High School part had been dropped from Community Work Day. It
is ... has ... the Friends of Old Maui High School has ... the allocation was reduced
and moved to the Department of Economic Development. And I'm here tonight
to answer questions you might have about that to explain to you that we are
partners in the project. It's very important that the Community Work Day
Program who has taken the lead on the cleanup, the improvement, and now the
step-by-step preparation of the buildings and grounds to be used by the public.
We are the ones who recruit the volunteers to go up to take it step-by-step on
preparing it for community use. The most outstanding project I guess last year
was the reunion and it was outstanding. And it took a lot of work and to make it
safe, to make even it safe to walk, and to, to move around the campus and a lot of
preparation went into preparing the buildings and we realized that there is more
and more possibility for those buildings in terms of community use. There are
infrastructure issues.
There are big planning issues.
There are historic
preservation issues. We have 1.3 million to put a roof on it. Once we get the roof
on the Dickey building -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. DAPITAN: --it will be declared as a national historic site. It will allow us to also
reach out to other sources of funding. But in the meantime, we're feeling a little
hurt that the program that sees itself in the future as a big part of the campus is not
funded to continue to do the work that we have been doing. I'm concerned that it
may affect our participation in something that has already gained recognition for
us nationally and awards and so on in terms of the, you know, really outstanding
project. The partnership that Barbara Long and I have has really been working
and it's going to take a lot of people that we can pull together a lot of resources
and we want to continue that partnership.
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MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. DAPITAN: I ask your help. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Dapitan? Mike
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Jan, one quick question. So you ... first I want to thank
you and Community Work Day for the work that you did on that campus to
restore it to, you know, it's really, really beautiful compared to what it once was
and I know you guys were in there from the start. So now with your funding
reduced, basically, as far as the Mayor's Budget goes, it's been reduced. So this
will definitely impact your participation with the Friends of Old Maui High
School to get that campus or at least maintain it into the shape that it's in right
now?
MS. DAPITAN: Well, we feel that with the rest of our budget which has ... is a flat
budget we're already going to be doing more with less and to have that kind of a
reduction it actually kind of eliminates that project from our list of, you know,
featured ... it's a signature project for us. And to have that funding not there, it's
hard to leverage that to get additional monies. We want to be a part of increasing
the funding to get the entire campus and keep it, not let it get back to a jungle
agaIn.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay. Thank you. And I know ... I can agree
with you that you guys were there from the start and where would the Friends of
Old Maui High be without Community Work Day support and being that that
campus was Patsy Mink, -MS. DAPITAN: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --Honorable Representative, graduated from there.
You know, I think it would be a real injustice to now let that campus go and
become dilapidated again without your help. So thank you for letting the
Committee know about this concern.
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, the next two testifiers are from the Fire
and Public Safety area. We do have Captain Colin Yamamoto and Captain David
Thyne.
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MR. YAMAMOTO: Hi. Good evening, Council Members. My name is Colin
Yamamoto, Captain, here in Paia for the last five and a half years and I'm very
familiar with this district. Current ... I'm here to testify in favor of the budgeted
new fire engine and a mini truck. Currently, we do not have a mini truck. The
mini truck that we had was a hand-me-down from Hana. So when Hana got a
new mini truck, they gave us their old mini truck. Currently, the mini truck is 30
years old - 30 years old. Our truck ... our engine is about 13 years old and it's the
oldest engine in the entire County that is online right now. So we have the oldest
engine and we have a 30 year old mini truck that is not even working right now.
So they took it offline and we're just basically, basically using like a Chevy
four-wheel drive Blazer to respond to all these mountain calls that we have.
One of the reasons why we really need a mini truck is we need the ... we need the
capability to, to discharge water from a vehicle because lots of times, as you
know, this district is very rural and we have sugar cane fields and pineapple fields
and when it rains, we cannot take our engines down these roads because it's going
to get stuck. So we need a smaller vehicle, four-wheel drive, that can go down
these roads and we can extinguish fires before they turn into large fires where we
need the helicopter. So now the helicopter is really expensive. It's $200 an hour
to fly that helicopter and we're paying this helicopter a little less than a million a
year just to standby 2417.
So we work together with our mini and our engine, and you know, basically we
are ... also we are the second busiest company in Maui County. So we are seven
times more busy than the rural stations such as Hana and Lanai and we're even
two to two and a half times more busy than our newest fire station in Wailea. So
we, we do have a lot of runs in Paia, yet we have the oldest equipment and we do
not have a mini and that's what we desperately need - a mini truck.
And a lot of times some of these multi-million dollar homes, they're in these so
rural areas and the roads are so small we can't take our engine in so what we
need ... we need like a relay pumping. Relay pumping is we're going to leave the
engine outside connected to either a fire hydrant or a standpipe that will feed
water to the mini that can go closer to these homes that has no access with our big
engine. That's why we need a small mini pumper. So I hope you guys can fund
our mini and our engine truck.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for your testimony. And just to let you know, we
will be reviewing the Fire and Public Safety Department's budget tomorrow
morning and we'll definitely take a look at all of the requirements that is being
requested. Thank you for your testimony. Okay, Members, questions? If not,
Captain Thyne.
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MR. THYNE: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for commg to the
community tonight. Tough act to follow there. He pretty much said everything I
was going to say. Other than, I'll tell you that I worked in Lahaina for 15 years
prior to my assignment as a Captain in Kihei, later on to be assigned here in Paia.
I live out in Haiku. And oftentimes I wondered as I took my kids to birthday
parties and events in Haiku, how do these guys get to these locations? I mean this
is a very rural district. So certainly I echo Captain Yamamoto's sentiments in that
we do need an off-road apparatus. I apologize that I don't have statistical data for
you. Captain Yamamoto covered several, several of the areas we've talked with
our Administration about. I can't speak for our previous Administration's
replacement policy. I understand that question came up regarding Mini 2. But we
do, you know, want to pledge our support for replacing of both Engine 2 and Mini
2.

As Captain Yamamoto stated, a lot of times we even have to split our company
with two apparatus. We can effectively fight a wild land fire that may spread to
areas that are inaccessible with the engine, as well as you know, getting to
emergency calls. We've even had to a couple of different times ride the
ambulance down to areas. Fortunately, it was dry. As Captain Yamamoto stated,
if it's wet, there's ... the ambulance won't even get there. We've hiked in. My
experience, personally, 30 minutes to 20 to 30 minutes to some areas because we
can't get any type of apparatus down there. So you know, having the second
oldest engine company obviously in a district like this, we respond all the way out
to Kaumahina. So I mean we're putting miles on that apparatus. We're going on
winding country roads. The gal earlier spoke ofUlumalu, you know, just the wear
and tear on the apparatus. And so we ask for your support, and again, I apologize
for not having statistical data for you that you can read and see the amount of runs
that we go on. But should you need it, I'm sure our Administration and our
Chiefs can provide that for you. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Captain Thyne. Members, questions for both
Captains at this time? Seeing none. And again, you know, to reiterate what I said
earlier, we'll be reviewing the Department's budget tomorrow morning. So we'll
definitely look at equipment. Thank you. Thank you for being here. Brian
McCafferty. And Members, Brian McCafferty is the last person to sign up for
testimony. Is there anyone out there that want to provide public testimony that
hasn't signed up? If you could come forward and sign up with our Committee
Secretary, the Chair would appreciate that.
MR. MCCAFFERTY: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for coming to Paia. I'm
just ... came to support Jan Dapitan's request for inclusion in your budget for
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maintaining momentum at the old Maui High School. Just to give you a ... just a
brief example of how Jan Dapitan operates, just for those of you who don't know,
Jan is a master at marshalling pro bono services. So if you, you give Jan Dapitan
$50,000, she's going to get you a quarter of a million dollars bang for the buck.
Yeah. And you know, she works everybody. She works ... especially Goodfellow
Brothers and the State Department of Transportation and, and us. We have a little
program, Teens-on-Call, she works us too.
And an example, AmeriCorps is coming in a week. There's an AmeriCorps
program that Jan brings to Maui to perform a number of projects at Kanaha Beach
Park and for nonprofits over in Honokowai Valley, Ed Lindsey, and so forth. And
she's also ... and she's been putting them up at the old Maui High School and
they're doing projects at old Maui High School in conjunction with our program,
Teens-on-Call. And this, this year we're, we're strengthening the walls of the old
woodshop building up at old Maui High School making the building secure. It's
quite a large building. It's the old woodshop building. It's probably 80-feet long
by 40-feet wide. It's a historic building and it's basically, you know, like a lot of
the old buildings around this area that has salt-water treated beams, you know, so
they're very strong, but the wood in between sometimes needs to be strengthened.
So we're working with the AmeriCorps people and Jan, you know, her operation,
Community Work Day, is coordinating all of this to rehab this building to a point
where it's going to last a lot longer and this is at no cost to the community.
So Jan over the years, you know, she takes building by building and she rehabs
them at minimum price to the County or to the community, and then she turns
them over to the community to use. So, so your money is ... that's where
her. .. that's where your money goes. That's how she spends your money. Very,
you know, very frugally and she gets a lot of.. . a lot of pro bono. So I'd just like
to urge you to support maintaining the momentum at old Maui High School for
Jan. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Brian. Members, questions for the testifier? If not,
thank you very much for your testimony. Again, the Chair would like to ask if
anyone that had not signed up for public testimony and want to do public
testimony this evening, if you could come up forward? Seeing none .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee would like to
thank everyone out here this evening ... the ones that area left for being here
tonight so that we could receive your testimony on behalf of the Mayor's 2009
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Fiscal Year Budget. If there's no more announcements, the Chair will adjourn
this meeting. This meeting is adjourned. . .. (gavel) ...
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:33 p.m.

APPROVED:

bf:min:080408-Paia

Transcribed by: Clarita Balala
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